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          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Good afternoon,

          3  ladies and gentlemen. Welcome to this City Council

          4  and this hearing of the Parks Committee. I'm Council

          5  Member Wendell Foster, Chair of the Committee and

          6  here with us today is Council Member Robinson,

          7  Provenzano, Povman and others.

          8                 And to my right is the attorney, Mr.

          9  Pers, and to his right is Frank Neu?

         10                 MR. PERS: Neeley.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Neeley, forgive

         12  me.

         13                 Frank, I'm giving you another job.

         14  Whichever pays best.

         15                 We have Intro. Number 1008-A.

         16                 How many are there?

         17                 MR. PERS: Ten.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: And there are ten

         19  bills, and then we have two others, titled, in

         20  relation to naming ten public thoroughfares in

         21  public places: Kevin F. Conroy Ballfield, Borough of

         22  Brooklyn; Ilka Tanya Payan Memorial Park, Manhattan;

         23  Juan Pablo Duarte Square, and others.

         24                 Do we have anyone here to give

         25  testimony on any of these bills?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right,

          4  Council Member Robinson. Which one will you be

          5  speaking on?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I will be

          7  speaking on Battalion Chief Robert Turner.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right.

          9                 Council Member Robinson.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Thank you

         11  very much, Chairman Foster.

         12                 It is my privilege to have this come

         13  before the Committee today, to name Hancock Street,

         14  from Stuyvesant to Marcy Avenue, Battalion Chief

         15  Robert Turner Way.

         16                 Robert Turner was a firefighter, New

         17  York City firefighter. He joined the Department in

         18  1955.

         19                 During his career he served in many

         20  positions, including Deputy Commissioner for

         21  community affairs, before ascending to the rank of

         22  Battalion Chief.

         23                 Robert Turner was also an active

         24  community leader. He was affiliated with Cub Scout

         25  Pack 259 of the Bridge Street AME Church, was active
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          2  in his block association and local, political and

          3  civic organizations.

          4                 I must also say, Mr. Chairman, that

          5  Battalion Chief Robert Turner was a member of the

          6  Boy Scouts of America for over 50 years.  He was a

          7  friend, he was a confidant, someone that I could

          8  count on and that the community could count on.

          9                 You knew that if Robert Turner was

         10  present, that everything was going to be all right.

         11                 And, so, Mr. Chairman, I ask that the

         12  Committee would vote favorably on this legislation

         13  to name Hancock Street, between Stuyvesant and Marcy

         14  Avenue, in honor of Battalion Chief Robert Turner.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         16  much, Council Member Robinson.

         17                 Would the Sergeant find out if the

         18  Speaker is desirous to testify on 1005, please.

         19                 Mr. Povman, do you have anything to

         20  say about any of these bills?

         21                 I understand Mr. McCaffrey would like

         22  to testify; is he available?

         23                 MR. PERS: He's on his way up.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right.

         25                 Mr. Linares is outside, so thank you
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          2  very much. Mrs. Pinkett is downstairs. Would you

          3  find out if Ms. Pinkett is desirous of testifying

          4  before we end the meeting?

          5                 I suggest we just wait a few minutes

          6  and see who would like to come up and testify.

          7                 We've been joined by Council Member

          8  Linares, who comes in with his posse.

          9                 Mr. Linares, you have 1009, would you

         10  tell us about that, please? Two. You have two. Can

         11  you tell us about both of them, please?

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chair, and I want to thank the staff also for

         14  their diligence and effort with these two particular

         15  bills.

         16                 The first one which is, I hope I am

         17  referring to them in the right order, is Ilka Tanya

         18  Payan.

         19                 Ilka was a renown artist that was

         20  known not only in the Dominican Republic, where she

         21  was born, but also throughout Latin America, and

         22  here in the United States she was an artist, soap

         23  opera artist. And in the course of her life for

         24  being an active woman activist, Ilka contracted the

         25  illness of AIDS and she became an AIDS activist and
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          2  dedicated her last portion of her life to bring

          3  awareness to our communities in New York City, but

          4  in particular the Latino community, as to the

          5  devastating impact of AIDS in our communities, and

          6  she died as a result of AIDS.  And this is the

          7  reason why many leaders in my district and in our

          8  community requested this piece of legislation naming

          9  a memorial park after her.

         10                 She lived on 156 Street, and this is

         11  right next to where she lived and she's buried. So,

         12  I am presenting this before the Committee.

         13                 We were going to have a

         14  representative of the community to come and testify

         15  -- I don't know if they've arrived -- to say a few

         16  words. That's my first piece of legislation.

         17                 The second piece is Juan Pablo Duarte

         18  Square. As you recall, I've introduced legislation

         19  in the past naming a portion of St. Nicholas Avenue

         20  after the founding father of the Dominican Republic

         21  Juan Pablo Duarte, and there is a foundation that

         22  has been established, Juan Pablo Duarte Foundation,

         23  to give scholarships to children, also to highlight

         24  the contribution of Juan Pablo Duarte, and they have

         25  requested of me and of the community that a park be,
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          2  square be named after Juan Pablo Duarte, so that

          3  there can be an appropriate monument built in memory

          4  of Juan Pablo Duarte adjacent to the avenue named

          5  there in his name, and that park is at 170th Street

          6  and Juan Pablo Duarte Boulevard, which is also St.

          7  Nicholas.

          8                 At that point, that's the second

          9  request and piece of legislation that I introduced

         10  to the Committee today for approval.

         11                 I appreciate your support in both

         12  these pieces of legislation.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Sergeant, others are here to testify.

         16                 Mr. McCaffrey, you have three.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Yes, sir.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you tell us

         20  about the three?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you,

         22  Mr. Chairman. I appreciate your courtesy.

         23                 Just before I get to this, I just

         24  want to talk about your last Committee action, it

         25  brought great solace to several of the families that
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          2  the Council had stopped in its deliberations to name

          3  streets and parks after their lost loved ones, and

          4  they wanted me to express to you that sincere

          5  appreciation and to the members.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you. We

          7  appreciate that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: On two such

          9  items of a similar nature, Vernon Cherry Way, and

         10  Michael Brennan Way.

         11                 Vernon Cherry many of us knew. As you

         12  will recall for many years he was the magnificent

         13  voice of the New York City Fire Department.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: And was a

         16  magnificent fellow. His mother who lived in Woodside

         17  Houses and still lives there, raised him. He was

         18  surely one of the more distinguished members of the

         19  Fire Department in sense of humor, and he was

         20  constantly giving to people who he came across who

         21  were hard luck stories, perhaps to some, but to him

         22  was people who were in need of compassion.

         23                 Michael Brennan was a young

         24  firefighter, who ended up being someone who had

         25  always aspired from his earliest years to be able to
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          2  be part of New York City's bravest, and on that day

          3  of September 11th, he, in the best tradition the

          4  Fire Department was there to protect the public and

          5  he lost his life.

          6                 On a more positive and more upbeat

          7  note, we have Met Life Plaza, which we are asking to

          8  designate at the foot of the Queens Borough Bridge

          9  in Queens. This represents the symbol of some of the

         10  Council's action in which we have expanded the

         11  opportunities for Long Island City development.

         12                 This will be a hallmark location. We

         13  are just also voting on tomorrow's agenda, the

         14  expansion of that facility there. There are 2,000

         15  workers who will be there, and this is an

         16  appropriate way for them to be able to identify

         17  their contribution to the community.

         18                 I thank you, Mr. Chairman, again for

         19  your courtesy over the years. You have been so

         20  generous and kind.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         22  Council Member.

         23                 There was someone saying they wanted

         24  to be here to testify for Met Life.

         25                 MR. ZIPSER: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: All right, would

          3  you fill out a form, please, Sergeant, so we will

          4  know who you are? Thank you.

          5                 And then just speak into the

          6  microphone because this is being electronically

          7  recorded.

          8                 MR. ZIPSER: I'm now on?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.

         10                 MR. ZIPSER: All right.

         11                 My name is Howard Zipser and I am a

         12  partner in the law firm of Staten Myabalk

         13  (phonetic), and before I talk about Met Life, I

         14  would like to just talk about you all, and I'm a

         15  supplicant, I'm not an applicant, but I'm also a

         16  citizen of the City of New York, and I just want to

         17  thank the Council members who I've known through the

         18  years who sit on this Committee and who are not

         19  going to be with us because of term limits, and

         20  you've done a wonderful job and I want to thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         22  much, Mr. Zipser.

         23                 MR. ZIPSER: Now, I'd just like to

         24  summarize, because I have a prepared statement that

         25  I don't think, after following Walter McCaffrey,
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          2  it's necessary to go through all of this.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: We appreciate

          4  that.

          5                 MR. ZIPSER: Metropolitan Life

          6  Insurance Company was very excited about moving

          7  approximately 2,000 of its employees to Bridge Plaza

          8  in Long Island City.

          9                 This will jumpstart, we hope, the

         10  establishment of a new business district, and

         11  represents a major commitment to Queens.

         12                 The Brewster Building, which has long

         13  been vastly underutilized, is undergoing a complete

         14  renovation.

         15                 Met Life has also begun working with

         16  City agencies to approve the streetscape in the

         17  Queens Plaza area.

         18                 To achieve this projected corporate

         19  consolidation in Queens Plaza, Met Life will build

         20  an additional 275,000 square feet of floor area.

         21                 This addressed change will help us

         22  identify the efforts that we as a corporation are

         23  expending in Queens and we respectfully request your

         24  favorable consideration.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very
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          2  much, sir, for coming. And thank you for the calls

          3  you've made to me, insisting that we do it.  With

          4  you and Mr. McCaffrey pushing for it, what else

          5  could I do? Thank you very much.

          6                 MR. ZIPSER: The Community Board

          7  thanks you also.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you.

          9                 Would you stick around for awhile,

         10  please?

         11                 All right, any other comments from

         12  any other Council members present?

         13                 Mr. Golden, I don't know whether he's

         14  in the building or not. Mr. Linares is here. Ms.

         15  Pinkett just started her own, chairing her meeting

         16  and is now presenting an opening statement, so she

         17  said it's not necessary for her to testify.

         18                 Council Members, are there any

         19  questions on anything we're about to do?

         20                 Any objections on anything we're

         21  about to do?

         22                 All right, so what should we do now?

         23                 MR. PERS: Do the roll.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you do

         25  that, please?
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          2                 MR. PERS: You're adopting three

          3  items, filing nine others. Coupled for a vote is

          4  Intro. 1008-A, 1005 and 1015. Your filing Intro.

          5  Numbers 951, 970, 1009, 1010, 1011, 1012, 1012,

          6  1013, 1014, and 1016.

          7                 Roll call.

          8                 Foster.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Aye.

         10                 MR. PERS: Povman.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER POVMAN: Aye.

         12                 MR. PERS: Linares.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Yes.

         14                 MR. PERS: Robinson.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Yes.

         16                 MR. PERS: Provenzano.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Yes.

         18                 MR. PERS: By a vote of five in the

         19  affirmative, no negative, no abstentions, the items

         20  are adopted. The reports are hopefully on their way

         21  upstairs.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         23  much for your vote and for your being here today.

         24                 I would hope that next year this

         25  Committee will move as quickly as we did today and
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          2  as efficiently.

          3                 May I say, as we prepare to leave,

          4  it's been a pleasure serving with all of you, and I

          5  know we are just leaving the Council, we're not

          6  leaving life. So, we will leave each other at

          7  another time and another way, and thank you all.

          8                 I don't believe there is anything

          9  else.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: I have

         11  something.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Oh, all right.

         13                 Council Member Robinson, please.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ROBINSON: Mr.

         15  Chairman, I would just like to say thank you for

         16  your leadership of this Committee. Not only have we

         17  named streets, but we have also been instrumental in

         18  improving the quality of life with our parks and our

         19  libraries, and also the broadcast and theater area,

         20  as well, and I think that's important to be noted.

         21                 And I want to thank you for your

         22  leadership, and, of course, your participation and

         23  the way you put together the African-American

         24  History Celebration each year, which was really very

         25  special, and you had an opportunity for all of the
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          2  people of the City of New York to share in the

          3  culture of African-American people.

          4                 So, I just want to thank you for your

          5  leadership in that regard for what you've done on

          6  this Committee.

          7                 Thank you very much.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

          9  much, Council Member Robinson.

         10                 Mr. Reed, we have just taken a vote

         11  on our agenda for the day, do you want to hear the

         12  whole agenda, or are you prepared to vote?

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: No, sir, I'm

         14  prepared to vote.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Would you,

         16  please?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes, sir. I vote

         18  aye on all.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you very

         20  much, Mr. Reed.

         21                 I may say to my colleagues that I had

         22  a dedication of a park this morning, and so many

         23  people wanted me to express to this Committee their

         24  gratitude, not only for that park, but for all that

         25  we've done in reclaiming our parkland and other
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          2  things. People from the theater community have

          3  already contacted us, hoping that those who would

          4  succeed us would be as kind to them as we were.

          5  We're all in this together trying to make a better

          6  city. Now, let's have a good holiday and meet again

          7  in this world before we meet again in the other

          8  world.

          9                 Council Member Pinkett, oh, she is

         10  here.

         11                 I just excused you for not being

         12  here.

         13                 Council Member Pinkett, I'm sorry, we

         14  just excused you because you were presiding next

         15  door.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PINKETT: I just want

         17  to thank, first of all, you, Council Member Foster,

         18  for your acting on these park changes -- I mean on

         19  these name changes, and for the manner in which

         20  you've conducted, of course, the Parks Committee

         21  over the years.

         22                 Parks is a special area of concern

         23  for me and for my constituents, because it means so

         24  much to us in the City. I especially want to thank

         25  you for the efforts that you have assisted me with
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          2  in terms of the street name change for Inspector

          3  Anthony Falco Square, who was an inspector in our

          4  community, and if there is such a thing as a person

          5  who could be termed sweet, he was a wonderful

          6  person, and we lost a very marvelous person, and we

          7  want to remember him and name this area for him.

          8                 And the other area that is there

          9  would be the Street of Arts and Culture, and it was

         10  important because it gives us a chance to have both

         11  recognition of the music and arts and to have that

         12  multicultural input from all of the people in that

         13  community and we think that by changing the name,

         14  that this will enrich the entire community and have

         15  a broad-based acclaim for that community and for all

         16  of us to make our participation, and we thank you

         17  for that and your understanding and the members of

         18  the Committee for being kind enough to allow me to

         19  speak when I know that you have things to do.

         20                 So, thank you so very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Thank you,

         22  Council Member. And thank you for joining us.

         23                 Is there anything else?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Mr. Chair?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LINARES: Very briefly,

          3  just to add to the remarks that were made before by

          4  Council Member Robinson, I served from the very

          5  beginning of my tenure here in this Committee and I

          6  have to say that the work of this Committee under

          7  your leadership and with my other colleagues did

          8  accentuate an impact on every community when we look

          9  at parks, when we look at the cultural institutions

         10  and the impact that they have on the life of the

         11  City. And when we look at the diversity in our City

         12  in times of challenges, in times of conflict, this

         13  Committee has played a role, particularly when it

         14  comes to intergroup relations.

         15                 And I think you have with your

         16  leadership in this Committee, have played a role in

         17  this City Council when the need was there, and I

         18  want to acknowledge that. For me it was really quite

         19  an experience.

         20                 I just would like to say that behind

         21  the work that we do, public, as members of this

         22  Committee, is the work of the staff. Ira Pers and

         23  Frank Neeley have always been there working hard and

         24  making a tremendous difference to make us look good,

         25  so I want to publicly thank them, as well, and I

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            20

          1  COMMITTEE ON PARKS

          2  think we -- you know, it's not just about street

          3  naming. That's what I want to say. It is very

          4  important that we through this Committee have been

          5  able to acknowledge the contribution that so many

          6  New Yorkers have made to make the City much better.

          7  And that is a very important role for this Committee

          8  which I believe everyone acknowledges, but it's much

          9  more than street naming, it's also serving our

         10  neighborhoods.

         11                 So, I want to thank you, Mr. Chair,

         12  for facilitating and giving leadership to this

         13  Committee.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FOSTER: That's very kind

         15  of you. Thank you very much.

         16                 All right, there's nothing else, we

         17  can stand adjourned.

         18                 I think I'd like to put my name on

         19  all of these, as well, because our last hoorah, we

         20  may as well go out together.

         21                 We've done some good things, we

         22  really have.

         23                 Al, we wish to thank you, as well,

         24  all right? You've been here with us, and even when

         25  we had to disagree you were so kind and generous,
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          2  and we thank you.

          3                 You're always here but I never see

          4  you write anything about us. Madeline said you will

          5  tell them about it. They said that you go around

          6  here as our press man, and, so, I wish to thank you,

          7  Rudy, okay?

          8                 Anything else?

          9                 All right, we stand adjourned. Thank

         10  you, everyone. God bless. Have a good holiday. Thank

         11  you.

         12                 (Hearing concluded at 1:32 p.m.)
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